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2. Missouri Historic Sites Catalogue
1963 ' state
State Historical Society of Missouri
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. Columbia, Missouri 65201
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Landmarks Commission of Kansas City, Missouri
City Hall - 26th Floor, E.
414 E. 12th Street
Kansas City, Missouri 64106

7. Missouri State Historical Survey -
1977 state
Department of Natural Resources
P.0. Box 176
Jefferson City, Missouri 65101
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

“Woodneath," the Elbridge Arnold Homestead, is located at 8900 N.E. Flintlock
Road, within the Kansas City city limits of rural Clay County, Missouri.
Constructed in 1855-56, the residence provides an excellent example of a rural
farmhouse built in the Greek Revival style. The two-story, five-bay, L-shaped
building remains in its original site with turn of the century additions. Also
included in this nomination are: 1) a two and one-half story (south facade),
Carpenter's vernacular style, wood-frame barn built circa 1875 (west of residence),
2) a vitrified red brick silo built circa 1920, and 3) a single-story, four-bay
stable structure built circa 1875 (west of the barn).
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“The res1dence measures approx1mate]y 52 feet east-west and 62.5 feet north-sotith.
“‘There are ‘approximately 3,350 square’ feet of living space.

Construction materials and colors

Basic construction materials include uncoursed native limestone employed for

the foundations with a coursed limestone water table extending along the ground
story of the exterior of the structure. Eighteen-inch thick hand-made red

brick walls Taid in common bond form exterior walls. Pink irregular brick forms
the inner walls. Window frames and muntins and door elements are of wood painted
white. Louvered window shutters are of wood painted.black. Entrance surrounds,
window Tintels and lugsills, porch elements, and the northwest, single-story
frame addition are painted white. e .
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Windows. ' Rectangular windows on the south facade are positioned .one per bay per
story. Each is filled by a six-over-six light, double-hung sash. Cut Tlimestone
tugsills trim the lower edge of each opening. Positioned one per bay per story,
with the exception of the central bay, each east facade window has a six-over-
six light, double-hung, rectangular sash. Louvered wood shutters, wood lugsills,
and cut limestone Tlintels complete each open1ng On the second story of the
north facade of the ell are two, six-over=-six 1ight, double-hung, rectangular
sash windows, The west facade of the ell contains four, double-hung, rectangular
sash windows, two on the first story and two directly above on the second story.
Two, single-sash windows are located near the apex of the gable of the west
facade of the ell. Various types of sash and casement windows are employed on
the first-story addition. The .north side 'of the first-story addition contains
two, rectangular, double-hung sash windows, one small, single-light, double-

hung sash window, and a tripartite group of three double-light sliding windows.
The south side of the first-story addition contains one, rectangular, two-over-
two light, double-hung sash window. s

"r
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Doorways. Three entrances provide access to the house: the main (or east)
entrance, the south (library) entrance, and the west (or rear) entrance. The
primary entrance is centered on the east facade on the first story. It is filled
by a single-leaf, glass and wood door framed by a transom and sidelights. The
reveal of the entranceway has recessed panels. Directly above is a second
entrance of a similar type which opens onto the balcony.

Secondary entrances provide access to the library (formerly the dining room)

and first-story (kitchen) addition. The rear (or kitchen) entrance has a single-
leaf glazed door; the library entrance is filled by a single-leaf door capped by
a triple-light transom and is reached by a side porch.

Porches

Porches include:

1. A two-story portico along the east facade is composed of paired four white
oak, square Doric columns and two pilasters supporting a hip roof.
Centrally placed along the second story of the east facade is a balcony,
guarded by lattice balusters supporting a shaped banister.

3. Located along the south facade of the ell is a single-story portico, con-
sisting of concrete flooring with four red brick piers supporting a hip roof.

4, A redwood porte-cochere with a corrugated metal shed roof is located along
the west wall of the ell.

Roofs

The structure has five roofs: 1) a low-pitched gable roof of asphalt composition
shingles covers the main structure, 2) a low-pitched hip roof surfaced with
asphalt composition sheeting covers the portico, 3) a tar-papered, flat roof
covers the first-story addition, 4) a corrugated fiberglass roof covers the

- porch west of the kitchen addition, and 5) a shed roof covers the porte cochere.

Chimneys

There are three, single-stack, red brick chimneys. Two are flush with the wall
surface of the end (north and south) facades of the east portion of the main
residence; the third (or rear) chimney is flush with the west facade of the ell.

Decorative details

Decorative features include: 1) stone lintels of doorways and. windows, 2) stone
lugsills of windows, 3) star motif on the freize of the main entrance portico,
4) primary entrance surround, 5) portico and balcony, and 6) cornices.
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INTERIOR
Basement

Access to the basement is from the 1ibrary by a walnut stairway. The walls are
constructed of stone. Comprising the space in the basement are rooms beneath
the dining room and library which house an 011 furnance (installed in 1976), a
dehumidifier, and a hot water heater.

First floor

Interior wall construction consists of wood joists with lath and plaster walls.
Four original rooms (parlor, library, dining room, and 1iving room) and the
additions (kitchen, bedroom, and bathroom) occupy the first floor. Upon entry,

the center hallway separates the parlor to the north from the living room, dining
room, and library to the south. A functional fireplace is located in the living
room. Sealed fireplaces are located in the parlor and dining room. Accenting

the ceiling of the parlor is a four foot in diameter, plastered, floriate medallion
in medium relief.

An open, single-run, U-shape staircase, located at the west end of the center hall,
is constructed of hard white pine. The staircase consists of a turned and shaped
newell post with tapered balusters surmounted by a shaped wood banister. A
secondary, single-run, U-shape staircase is enclosed in a stairhall along the

north wall of the library.

Second floor .

Rooms on the second floor include a large storage room on the north side and a
newly converted four-room apartment, including a living room, kitchen, bedroom,
and bathroom, on the south side. There remains a functional fireplace in the
apartment's west bedroom and a closed fireplace in its living room. Originally,
there were four bedrooms on this floor.

Attic

The attic, an unplastered open room with exposed rafters, completely covers the
ell of the residence.

ALTERATIONS

'Alterations to the residence include:

1. 1880 .
a) installation of door connecting front and rear upstairs
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2.

w o

11.

12.

13.
14.

15,

1901
a) installation of wood-burning furnace
b) installation of brick cistern in northwest corner of the ell (approxi-
mately 10' by 20' deep)
%) addition of south- facade porch (formerly a greenhouse)
910
a) addition of kitchen (first-story addition)
b) installation of acetylene light system
1917-1922
a) installation of kitchen cabinets (former kitchen, present dining room)
circa 1922
a) removal of widow's walk (observatory or belvedere)
1920's
a) removal of gas system
1931
a) installation of electricity
circa 1938
a) kitchen changed to present location
1940
a) residence painted and reshingled
b) kitchen linoleum laid
1940's
a) basement floor converted from dirt to concrete
1945
a) installation of two full bathrooms
b) installation of water system
1958 .
a) dining room replastered
b) dining room window installed along the south wall
1963-64
?) two rooms west of kitchen added
965
a) two rooms west of kitchen removed and replaced by a porch and porte
cochere
date unknown
a) removal of pilasters flanking the secondary, south (1ibrary) entrance

Alterations to the homestead include:

1.
2.

1970

a) center entry post removed to accommodate larger farming 1mp1ements
date unknown »

a) removal of cupola during reshingling of present barn
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CONDITION
"Woodneath" is presently in good condition and receives regular maintenance.
SITE

"Woodneath," the Elbridge Arnold Homestead, is located in rural Ctay County,
Missouri. Facing east toward N.E. Flintlock Road, the front pastures consist of
oak, pine, and sugar maple trees. Situated approximately 10 feet apart along
Flintlock Road are two, six foot in height, square gate posts which mark the
east property line. A continuous gravel road leads from Flintlock Road and
encircles the residence. Other gravel driveways allow access to the west out-
buildings. Located approximately 500 feet from the main entrance, other
outbuildings include: 1) a three-story (on the east facade), wood-frame, hip
roof barn, built circa 1875, 2) a single-story, gable roof, four bay wide, wood-
frame stable, built circa 1875, 3) a cylindrical, glazed concrete block silo,
built ca. 1920, 4) a single-story, gable roof, wood-frame chicken house, built
ca. 1930, located directly northwest of the main residence, and 5) and 6) two
modern, single-story, frame and dry board constructed cottages, built 1940-
1942, located southwest of the main entrance.

PRESENT STATUS

The continued existence of "Woodneath," the Elbridge Arnold Homestead, and its
property is assured as it will most probably be held within the Crouch family
name. There is no threat of demolition or redevelopment of the area.

-

FOOTNOTES

1. Interviews with Mrs. Edwin Y. Crouch, owner, Kansas City, Missouri, September
1976 through Jdanuary 1977.

2. [Ibid.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

’ - - - -

The Elbridge Arnold Homestead in Kansas. City, Clay County, Missouri, is a impor-
tant surviving example of a brick, Greek Revival.style farmhouse retained within
its rural, Western Missouri setting. The_Arnold Homestead, built in 1855-1856
for farmer and landowner Elbridge Arno]d,] survives as one of the oldest ante-
bellum structures in Kansas City. .Significant.in their association.to the main
house are sturctural remnants of original, as weéll as.nearly.intact period agri-
cultural outbuildings, that survive near the main residence. The Elbridge Arnold
Homestead significantly exhibits the type of agrarian lifestyle which was preva-
lent in Western Missouri from the middle to the third quarter of the Nineteenth
century,

HISTORICAL DATA

The first permanent settlers arrived in the area in 1819 with a heavy tide of
imigration arriving the following year. Early settlers came from Virginia,
Tennessee, North and South Carolina, with a majority of emigrants coming from
Kentucky. There was reportedly a population of 1,200 in the present boundaries
of Clay County, then a part of Ray County, by late'1821.’ By January, 1922,
Clay County was formed and named for orator and statesman Hepry Clay. Liberty,
selected as the county seat, was established that same year.¢ One such’early
~group of settlers were the Elbridge Arnold family of Shelby County, Kentucky,
who arrived in Clay County around 1838 and acquired a large acreage of land
totalling approximately 160 acres, located directly west of Liberty, Misscuri.3

The period of the forties and fifties was of great prosperity in Clay County.
About 1844, a new cash crop, hemp, was introduced and the rope making industry
soon bacame a major enterprise in Clay County. The Arnoids took advantage of
producing hemp, as well as raising livestock and corn.* It is presumed that the
close proximity of available markets in nearby Liberty, Missouri made the Arnold
family wealthy.

By 1854-1855, Elbridge Arnold began planning for the construction of a large
brick farmhouse. However, his sudden death in October, 1855 left the residegce
to be completed approximately a year later by his widow, Finetta Ann Arnold.
Various individuals from the surrounding community were suppliers and builders
for the construction of the house. Two of the pginciple builders were Fredem‘ck7
Myers and Thomas Morrison, both area carpenters.® Labor was supplied by slaves.
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By the late 1850's, prior to the onslaught of the Civil War, divisive forces
were split over the issue of slavery and related events centered around it.
Guerilla warfare broke out along the Kansas-Missouri border. With the start

of the Civil War, sympathy of the Clay County citizens were generallv divided.
The men were, for the most part, recruited in the Confederate Army.® To curb
the increased guerilla activities, Brig. General Thomas Ewing issued Order No.
11 on August 25, 1863, which specifically affected Jackson, Cass, Bates and por-
tions of Vernon counties. Clay gounty was not included in the order, thus the
Arnold Homestead was unaffected.

The Arnold farmhouse was used exclusively for residential purposes during the

war, except for the west second story bedroom which was utilized as a school

room by Arnold's eldest daughter, Sara M. Arnold. Classes were normally con-
ducted at Brick-Monroe School, which was forced to close due to continued guerilla
activities in the area.!0 Finetta Ann Arnold and her family remained on t?e
Arnold Homestead until it was sold in 1865 as the Civil War was at an end.!!

"Woodneath" is believed to have received its name during the ownership and oc-
cupancy of Prasley L. Moore from ]870-190012 It refers to the wooded area and
setting of the residence and outbuildings. During the years 1937 through
1953, under the ownership of Edwin Y. Crouch, the property was recognized as
the Crouch Dairy Farm. In 195%3 the property was used as a hay farm. The land
is presently farmed on shares.

The survey of Missouri's historic sites is based on the selection of sites as
they relate to theme studies in Missouri history as outlined in "Missouri's
State Historic Preservation Plan." The Elbridge Arnold Homestead is, therefore,
being nominated to the National Register of Historic Places as an example of the
themes of "Agriculture," “Architecture," "Exploration and Settlement," and
"Society."

FOOTNOTES

1. Purchase Receipts and Carpenters' Bills, 1 January 1855, 2 April 1857, 22
July 1857, Elbridge Arnold Papers, Clay County Historical Museum, Liberty,
Missouri; Abstract of Title (in the possession of Mrs. Edwin Y. Crouch,
8900 N.E. Flintlock Road, Kansas City, Missouri, 64157).

2. Edwards Brothers (compilers), An Illustrated Historical Atlas of Clay County,
Missouri (Philadelphia, Pa: Edwards Brothers, 1877), p. 9.

3. Abstract of Title (in the possession of Mrs. Edwin Y, Crouéh,EBQOO N.E.
Flintlock Road, Kansas City, Missouri, 64157). '
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4. Appraisement Bill, 2 November 1855 and Estate Sale List, 6 December 1855,
Elbridge Arnold Papers, Clay County Historical Museum, Liberty, Missouri.

5. Last Will and Testament, 10 October 1855 and Carpenter's Bills, 2 April 1857,
22 July 1857, Elbridge Arnold Papers, Clay County Historical Museum, Liberty,
Missouri.

6. Ibid.

7. Interview with Mrs. Edwin Y. Crouch, owner, Kansas City, Missouri, October
1976.

8. History of Clay and Platte Counties, Missouri (St. Louis, Missouri: National
Historical Society, 1885), pp. 184-189. ’

9, George C. Bingham, An Address to the Public (Kansas City, Missouri: (n.p.),
1871) p. app.

- 10. Interview with Mrs. Edwin Y. Crouch, October 1976,
11. Abstract of Title.
12. 1Ibid.; Homes and Garden Tour, (Liberty, Missouri: Town and Country Club,
1958), p. 4.
13. Interview with Mrs, Edwin Y. Crouch, January, 1977.

-
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The Elbridge Arnold Homestead in Kansas City, Clay County, Missouri, is an im-
portant surviving example of a brick, Greek Revival style farmhouse retained with-
in its rural, Western Missouri setting. The Arnold Homestead, built in 1855~

1856 for farmer and landowner Elbridge Arnold, survives as one of the oldest
antebellum structures in Kansas City. Significant in their association to the
main house are structural remnants of original, as well as nearly intact period
agricultural outbuildings, that survive near the main residence. The Elbridge
Arnold Homestead significantly exhibits the type of agrarian lifestyle which was

prevalent in Western Missouri from the middle to the third quarter of the Nine-
teenth century.





































































